Public Minutes



FTSE Russell Asia Pacific Regional Equity Advisory Committee

Tuesday 07 March 2023

ATTENDEES

Members: twelve (12); apologies: three (3)

FTSE Russell: ten (10) including the Chairman and Committee Secretary

Members were reminded of their obligations with regard to conflicts of interest, confidentiality and competition law. There were no declarations.

- 1.0 Statutory Governance Matters and Committee Information
- 1.1 <u>Membership changes</u>
- 1.1.1 FTSE Russell welcomed two new members to the advisory committee.
- 1.1.2 FTSE Russell thanked an outgoing member, for their contribution to the advisory committee.
- 1.2 Minutes
- 1.2.1 The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 13 September 2022 were approved as presented.
- 1.2.2 The public minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 13 September 2022 were approved as presented.
- 1.3 Governance
- 1.3.1 <u>Annual Review of the Committee Terms of Reference</u> (presented for endorsement): the updated Terms of Reference included minor housekeeping updates. The advisory committee endorsed the updated Terms of Reference.
- 1.3.2 <u>Annual Review of the FTSE Global Equity Index Series</u> Ground Rules (presented for endorsement): the committee attested that the rules have been maintained and continue to meet the purpose for which they were designed.
- 1.4 Action Points and Matters Arising
- 1.4.1 None.
- 1.5 Key Notices and Updates

ftserussell.com An LSEG Business 1 of 6

1.5.1 Methodology notices published since the last meeting were highlighted for the committee's benefit. There were no requests for clarification.

2.0 Equity Methodology and Policy

- 2.1 Eligibility of companies listed on a Developed-classified market but incorporated elsewhere (presented for discussion): FTSE Russell explained that the topic had arisen as the result of internal analysis, which highlighted that a few companies that, at the time of writing, were constituents of FTSE equity indices contrary to the Determining Nationality Guide: "If a company is incorporated in a country other than a developed country, has no listing in that country and is listed only in one or more developed countries, that company will only be eligible for FTSE Global Equity Index Series inclusion if the country of incorporation is internationally recognised as having a low taxation status that has been approved by FTSE. For companies incorporated in approved low taxation countries, FTSE will normally assign the company to the developed country with the greatest liquidity". The list of Low Tax Jurisdictions (LTJs) includes Bermuda, the British Virgin Isles, the Cayman Islands, Gibraltar, Guernsey, the Isle of Man, Jersey, and the Marshall Islands.
- 2.1.1 FTSE Russell explained that the list of FTSE Russell-approved LTJs was initially drafted in 2016 to reflect the jurisdictions which had been approved by the (now disbanded) FTSE Nationality Committee as acceptable locations of incorporation for constituents of the FTSE UK Index Series. However, the nationality rules did not capture this distinction. To facilitate the review of the anomalies identified within the GEIS Developed index and the associated guidelines, FTSE Russell invited feedback from the advisory committees on whether companies listed in a Developed-classified country must be incorporated in a Developed-classified country, or one of the LTJs.
- 2.1.2 A discussion ensued and the committee members provided feedback.
- 2.1.3 Summary: FTSE Russell thanked the committee members for their feedback and comments. If the Determining Nationality Guide is updated to remove the eligibility requirement which specifies that companies listed in a Developed-classified country must be incorporated in a Developed-classified country, or one of the LTJs, this would impact all indices to which the guide applies.

3.0 Equity Country Classification

- 3.1 <u>Progress of the September 2022 Watch List markets, and Frontier markets experiencing delays to the repatriation of capital</u> (presented for discussion)
- 3.1.1 Nigeria currently classified as a Frontier market within the FTSE Equity Country Classification framework and added to the Watch List in September 2022 for possible reclassification to Unclassified market status. This was due to market participants reporting significant, ongoing delays since 2020 to their ability to repatriate capital. Since being placed on the Watch List, FTSE Russell, with support from the FTSE Equity Country Classification Advisory Committee, conducted a number of engagement meetings with the Nigerian market authorities.
- 3.1.1.1 FTSE Russell said that it would provide an update on the Watch List status of Nigeria as part of the March 2023 interim update, scheduled to be published on Thursday 30 March 2023. Ahead of this update, FTSE Russell invited feedback and comments from the committee.
- 3.1.1.2 Summary: there were no comments from the committee members. FTSE Russell said that the March 2023 FTSE Equity Country Classification review results would be announced on 30 March 2023.
- 3.1.2 <u>Vietnam</u> currently classified as a Frontier market within the FTSE Equity Country Classification framework and added to the Watch List in September 2018 for possible reclassification to

- Secondary Emerging market status. At the time of writing, Vietnam had yet to meet the 'Settlement Cycle (DvP)' criterion, which is currently rated as 'Restricted'. This was due to the market practice of conducting a pre-trading check to ensure the availability of funds prior to trade execution.
- 3.1.2.1 FTSE Russell explained that it would provide an update on the Watch List status of Vietnam as part of the March 2023 Interim Update, scheduled to be published on Thursday 30 March 2023. Ahead of this update, FTSE Russell invited feedback and comments from the committee.
- 3.1.2.2 A discussion ensued and the committee members provided feedback.
- 3.1.2.3 **Summary**: FTSE Russell said that the March 2023 FTSE Equity Country Classification review results would be announced on 30 March 2023.
- 3.1.3 Other markets India:
- 3.1.3.1 The final tranche of stocks with the largest capitalisation and all "futures and options (F&O) stocks" transitioned to the shortened T+1 settlement mechanism at the end of January 2023. Initial feedback suggested that the underlying market processes had coped with the change, although without any material stress testing having taken place.
- 3.1.3.2 The OTR (Obligation Transfer Request) cut-off for brokers to submit their trades remained challenging, even though it was extended at the end of 2022 by an hour, to 20:00 (local time) on trade date (T).
- 3.1.3.3 FTSE Russell invited the committee members who have dealt with the transition of Indian equities to T+1 to share their experiences; committee members who had managed or encountered issues related to this transition were also invited to share their feedback.
- 3.1.3.4 A discussion ensued and the committee members provided feedback.
- 3.1.3.5 **Summary:** FTSE Russell said it would ensure the committee is kept abreast of developments regarding India's transition to T+1 and that the March 2023 FTSE Equity Country Classification review results would be announced on 30 March 2023.
- 3.1.4 <u>Frontier markets delays to the repatriation of capital and the suspension of index changes</u> (presented for discussion)
- 3.1.4.1 Due to reports of ongoing delays to the ability of international institutional investors to repatriate capital from Ghana, Kenya, and Nigeria, index changes for the aforementioned markets had been suspended within FTSE Russell equity indices for the March 2023 index reviews.

 Additionally, due to the extended implementation of a floor price limit by the Dhaka Stock Exchange, index changes for Bangladesh had also been suspended within FTSE Russell equity indices for the March 2023 index reviews. FTSE Russell invited the committee members for their feedback on the index treatment detailed in the technical notice and the delays faced by certain Frontier markets in general.
- 3.1.4.2 A discussion ensued and the committee members provided feedback.
- 3.1.4.3 **Summary:** FTSE Russell said that the March 2023 FTSE Equity Country Classification review results would be announced on 30 March 2023.
- 3.2 <u>China A Shares expansion of eligible stocks within the Stock Connect universe</u> (presented for discussion)
- 3.2.1 The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (HKEX) issued a circular on 19 January 2023 regarding the expansion of eligible stocks within the Stock Connect programme, as well as the introduction of a minimum market cap level and turnover, and differentiated voting rights. This

- announcement followed the initial joint announcement on 19 December 2022 from the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) and the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC).
- 3.2.2 The expansion of the Stock Connect universe to 96% of the eligible universe was expected to result in greater exposure to China A share small cap stocks within the FTSE Global Equity Index Series (GEIS).
- 3.2.3 FTSE Russell asked the advisory committee members to share their feedback on whether, based on this information provided at that stage, the new China A Shares additions resulting from the expanded Stock Connect universe should be implemented in a single tranche or multiple tranches, the members' preferred notice period for implementation, and their thoughts on the inclusion factor.
- 3.2.4 A discussion ensued and the committee members provided feedback.
- 3.2.5 Summary: FTSE Russell thanked the committee members for their comments. Subsequent to the discussion at the March 2023 advisory committee meetings, FTSE Russell explained that it intended to publish a market-wide consultation for feedback ahead of presenting the final proposal at the June 2023 advisory committee meetings for support. All consultations would be subject to approval by the FTSE Russell Index Governance Board.
- 4.0 AOB
- 4.1 There was no other business.
- 5.0 Actions
- 5.1 None.
- 6.0 Meeting dates
- 6.1 2023: 07 June / 06 September / 05 December

For more information about our indices, please visit ftserussell.com.

© 2023 London Stock Exchange Group plc and its applicable group undertakings (the "LSE Group"). The LSE Group includes (1) FTSE International Limited ("FTSE"), (2) Frank Russell Company ("Russell"), (3) FTSE Global Debt Capital Markets Inc. and FTSE Global Debt Capital Markets Limited (together, "FTSE Canada"), (4) FTSE Fixed Income Europe Limited ("FTSE FI Europe"), (5) FTSE Fixed Income LLC ("FTSE FI"), (6) The Yield Book Inc ("YB") and (7) Beyond Ratings S.A.S. ("BR"). All rights reserved.

FTSE Russell® is a trading name of FTSE, Russell, FTSE Canada, FTSE FI, FTSE FI Europe, YB and BR. "FTSE®", "Russell®", "FTSE Russell®" "FTSE4Good®", "ICB®", "The Yield Book®" "Beyond Ratings®" and all other trademarks and service marks used herein (whether registered or unregistered) are trade marks and/or service marks owned or licensed by the applicable member of the LSE Group or their respective licensors and are owned, or used under licence, by FTSE, Russell, FTSE Canada, FTSE FI, FTSE FI Europe, YB or BR.

FTSE International Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority as a benchmark administrator.

All information is provided for information purposes only. Every effort is made to ensure that all information given in this publication is accurate, but no responsibility or liability can be accepted by any member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors for any errors or for any loss from use of this publication or any of the information or data contained herein.

No member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors make any claim, prediction, warranty or representation whatsoever, expressly or impliedly, either as to the results to be obtained from the use of FTSE Russell indices or the fitness or suitability of FTSE Russell indices for any particular purpose to which it might be put. Indices cannot be invested in directly. Inclusion of an asset in an index is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold that asset. The general information contained in this publication should not be acted upon without obtaining specific legal, tax, and investment advice from a licensed professional.

No member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors provide investment advice and nothing in this document should be taken as constituting financial or investment advice. No member of the LSE Group nor their respective directors, officers, employees, partners or licensors make any representation regarding the advisability of investing in any asset or whether such investment creates any legal or compliance risks for the investor. A decision to invest in any such asset should not be made in reliance on any information herein. Indices cannot be invested in directly. Inclusion of an asset in an index is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold that asset nor confirmation that any particular investor may lawfully buy, sell or hold the asset or an index containing the asset. The general information contained in this publication should not be acted upon without obtaining specific legal, tax, and investment advice from a licensed professional.

No part of this information may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without prior written permission of the applicable member of the LSE Group. Use and distribution of the LSE Group index data and the use of their data to create financial products require a licence from FTSE, Russell, FTSE Canada, FTSE FI, FTSE FI Europe, YB, BR and/or their respective licensors.

About FTSE Russell

FTSE Russell is a leading global index provider creating and managing a wide range of indices, data and analytic solutions to meet client needs across asset classes, style and strategies. Covering 98% of the investable market, FTSE Russell indices offer a true picture of global markets, combined with the specialist knowledge gained from developing local benchmarks around the world.

FTSE Russell index expertise and products are used extensively by institutional and retail investors globally. For over 30 years, leading asset owners, asset managers, ETF providers and investment banks have chosen FTSE Russell indices to benchmark their investment performance and create investment funds, ETFs, structured products and index-based derivatives. FTSE Russell indices also provide clients with tools for asset allocation, investment strategy analysis and risk management.

A core set of universal principles guides FTSE Russell index design and management: a transparent rules-based methodology is informed by independent committees of leading market participants. FTSE Russell is focused on index innovation and customer partnership applying the highest industry standards and embracing the IOSCO Principles. FTSE Russell is wholly owned by London Stock Exchange Group.

For more information, visit ftserussell.com.

To learn more, visit ftserussell.com; or call your regional Client Service Team office:

EMEA

North America

Asia-Pacific

+44 (0) 20 7866 1810

+1 877 503 6437

Hong Kong +852 2164 3333 Tokyo +81 (3) 6441 1440 Sydney +61 (0) 2 8823 3521